
Lincoln, Fort Rice, Riverview, Florence Lake, Burnt Creek, Canfield, Lyman, & Phoenix 
Unorganized Townships 

Burleigh County Commission Meeting Agenda 
Tom Baker Meeting Room, City/County Office Building, 221 N 5th St, Bismarck 

Attend in Person | Watch live on Government Access Channels 2 or 602 | Listen to Radio Access 102.5 FM | 
Stream on freetv.org or Dakota Media Access Facebook Live | Replay later from freetv.org 

April 7, 2025 

5:00 PM 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance presented by Chaplain. 

COUNTY PARK BOARD. 

1. Meeting called to order.
2. Roll call of members.
3. Approval of Agenda.
4. Consideration of the October 21, 2024, meeting minutes.
5. Bismarck Parks and Recreation Operations Director Mayer:

a. Request authorization to obtain quotes for the Dredging of Boat ramps - Kimball
Bottoms and Kniefel.

b. Discussion of ramp rebuild.

COUNTY COMMISSION. 

1. Meeting called to order.
2. Roll call of members.
3. Approval of Agenda.
4. Consideration of the December 16th, 2024, March 22nd, March 29th and April 2nd meetings

minutes, and March 17th, 2025, meeting minutes and bills.

5. Consent Agenda:
a. Abatements.
b. Primary Residence Credit Abatements.
c. Gaming site authorization.
d. 2nd access permit.
e. Accepting platted right of ways.
f. RRH Subdivision.
g. Love’s Wastewater letter of approval.
h. ROW for Paradise Pointe Subdivision

6. Telecommunications Week Proclamation.

001

https://dakotamediaaccess.org/
https://www.facebook.com/dakotamediaaccess
https://dakotamediaaccess.org/


7. PUBLIC HEARING regarding plan on redesignating elective office of Burleigh County
Auditor/Treasurer to appointive office.

8. States Attorney Lawyer:

a. Information regarding redesignation of Auditor/Treasurer to appointed office.

9. Chairman Bitner:

a. Appointment of Robert Hook as Facilities Director.
b. HTG architecture and engineering fees.

10. County Sheriff Leben:

a. North Dakota Department of Transportation traffic safety grant.
b. Burleigh East Bid Acceptance.

11. Missouri Valley Complex:

a. Update by Chair LaCoe
b. Zoning to Public update.
c. Plat update – Timing.
d. Request the county to request bids for Delineation of the Missouri Valley Complex
e. Ag and Equestrian update and request.
f. Missouri Valley Complex contracts review.

12. County Engineer Hall:

a. Petition to vacate section line.

13. County Planning Director Flanagan:

a. Sterling Township service agreement.
b. Summit Point 2nd Subdivision.
c. Solar energy systems facilities.
d. Changes to platted non-access lines.

14. County Finance Director Jacobs:

a. Historical Practices for Election Worker Informational Tax Returns
b. Fiscal Year 2024 Results

15. Discussion regarding Bismarck-Burleigh Public Health.

16. County Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski:

002



Lincoln, Fort Rice, Riverview, Florence Lake, Burnt Creek, Canfield, Lyman, & Phoenix 
Unorganized Townships 

Burleigh County Commission Meeting Agenda 
Tom Baker Meeting Room, City/County Office Building, 221 N 5th St, Bismarck 

Attend in Person | Watch live on Government Access Channels 2 or 602 | Listen to Radio Access 102.5 FM | 
Stream on freetv.org or Dakota Media Access Facebook Live | Replay later from freetv.org 

a. Investment status update.

17. Other Business.

18. Adjourn.

The next regularly scheduled Commission meeting will be on April 21st, 2025.

Mark Splonskowski 
Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer 

003

https://dakotamediaaccess.org/
https://www.facebook.com/dakotamediaaccess
https://dakotamediaaccess.org/


COUNTY 
PARK 

BOARD 

004



BURLEIGH COUNTY PARK BOARD 
MEETING MINUTES 
OCTOBER 21, 2024 

5:00 PM  
Chairman Bitner called the Burleigh County Park Board meeting to order. 

A roll call of members: Commissioners Munson, Woodcox, Bakken, Schwab, Herman and Chairman Bitner 
were present: Comm. Behm was absent. 

Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Munson to approve the agenda. All members present voted, 
“AYE.” Motion carried. 

Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to approve the July 15th, 2024 minutes and bills. All 
members present voted, “AYE.” Motion carried. 

A parks update was given by Dave from Bismarck Parks and Rec stating that the boat ramps at MacLean 
Bottoms and Kniefel have been pulled, while the ramps at Kimball Bottoms and Steckel remain; a couple 
fish cleaning stations have been shut down in anticipation of colder weather. Dave also stated that some 
scouting for the dredging of the boat ramps next year also took place, and he recommended that (with the 
Board’s permission) the county begin filling out the 404 permit in preparation for said dredging next year. A 
consensus was reached among the commissioners to have the paperwork for the 404 permit started. No 
further action was taken. 

Comm. Munson informed the Board that the DAV completed their six-year agreement with maintaining 
Driscoll Sibley Park, and their hope is that the county will find someone else to take care of the park moving 
forward. 

Meeting adjourned. 

______________________________            ________________________________ 
Mark Splonskowski, Auditor/Treasurer     Brian Bitner, Chairman 

005



 

 

 

 

 

COUNTY 
 

 

 

 

COMMISSION 

006



 

Page | 1 
 

BURLEIGH COUNTY COMMISSION 
MEETING 

DECEMBER 16TH, 2024 

 

5:00 PM Invocation by Chaplain and Pledge of Allegiance 

Chairman Bitner called the regular meeting of the Burleigh County Commission to order. 

Roll call of the members: Commissioners Woodcox, Munson, Schwab, Bakken, and Chairman Bitner were present. 

The following changes were made to the agenda: 

• Item 10A was moved to after the consent agenda 
• Item 6 became item 9 
• Item 7 became item 6 
• Item 9 became item 7 
• The words CISA Report was added to item 10B 

Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Munson to approve the meeting agenda. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion 
carried. 

Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Munson to table the December 2nd, 2024 meeting minutes in order to properly review 
a revised draft due to unnecessary language in original version. All members present voted, “AYE”. Motion carried.  

Motion by Comm. Schwab, 2nd by Comm. Munson to approve the December 16th, 2024 bills. All members present voted, “AYE”. 
Motion carried. 

The following abatements were presented for the Board’s consideration; a complete copy of which are on file and available for 
inspection in the office of the Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer. 
 

Owner Tax 
Year 

Legal Description Credit Type Current 
MV 

Reduced 
MV 

Clayton & Mary 
Felchle 2023 Lot 18, Block 22, Wachter's 3rd 

50% Homestead 
Credit $248,500  $148,500  

Clayton & Mary 
Felchle 2024 Lot 18, Block 22, Wachter's 3rd 

50% Homestead 
Credit $266,400  $166,400  

Robert & Gayle 
Moyle 2024 

S80' of Lots 15-18, Block 4, 
McKenzie's 

50% Homestead 
Credit $294,300  $194,300  

Steven Blakely 2022 
1976 Marshfield 66 x 14, VIN# 
29553 

Mobile home 
removed $7,484  $0  

Steven Blakely 2023 
1976 Marshfield 66 x 14, VIN# 
29553 

Mobile home 
removed $7,983  $0  

Steven Blakely 2024 
1976 Marshfield 66 x 14, VIN# 
29553 

Mobile home 
removed $7,983  $0  

Etta Schue 2024 Lot 11, Block 13, Register's 2nd 
100% Homestead 
Credit $277,300  $77,300  

Robert & Jayme 
Holmberg 2024 Lot 10, Block 1, Horizon Heights 1st 

50% Homestead 
Credit $357,000  $257,000  

Kevin & Christine 
Soule 2024 

Block 21, Lounsberry Outlots, Beg 
pt 500' S & 180' E of NW corner, E 
117' S 50' W 117' N 50' to beg 

100% Homestead 
Credit $168,600  $0  

 

007



 

Page | 2 
 

Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to approve the Clayton & Mary Felchle (2), Robert & Gayle Moyle, Steven 
Blakely (3), Etta Schue, Robert & Jayme Holmberg, and Kevin & Christine Soule abatements and the remainder of the consent 
agenda. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

Chairman Bitner gave an update on the CO2 pipeline situation, saying that attorneys representing Burleigh County have filed to 
the courts an appeal of the Public Service Commission decision to approve a pipeline permit to Summit Carbon Solutions within 
the designated timeframe required by the law. Discussion on Summit Carbon Solutions’ CO2 pipeline was then continued from 
previous meeting(s). Chairman Bitner then once again opened the floor for public comment. Opinions about Summit and its 
pipeline were had and shared by Charles Tuttle, Tommy Collins, and Curtis Jundt. 

John Fraase inquired of the Commission about the possibility of renaming the municipal courtroom in the county courthouse after 
former Judge William C. Severin of Bismarck, subsequently giving a presentation about Judge Severin’s career and stated his 
favorability of such a memorial. Comm. Woodcox volunteered to work with Mr. Fraase to help the project along. Motion by 
Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to rename the municipal courtroom in the county courthouse in honor of former Judge 
William C. Severin. Comm. Woodcox, Munson, and Bakken voted “AYE”; Comm. Schwab and Bitner voted “NAY”. Motion 
carried. 

Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski presented to the Commission clarifications regarding the 2024 First Quarter investment report 
provided by County Finance Director Jacobs back on November 18th, 2024. The points of clarifications are as follows: 

- Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski stated that he believes the benchmarks used in Finance Director Jacobs’ report did 
not follow the current investment policy in the Burleigh County Finance Manual. Jacobs’ report had compared 
treasuries against CDs for example rather than comparing treasuries against treasuries, CDs against CDs, etc., as 
prescribed in the manual; the report’s figures were also based solely on treasuries and had not included CDs or money 
markets. 

- Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski informed the Commission that the 2023 yield exceeded the budgeted yield by over 
$100,000, and that as of August 2024, Burleigh County investments yielded $1.1 million beyond what was budgeted. 
Based on Finance Director Jacobs’ report & benchmark, the calculated loss in 2023 amounted to 0.0088 (9/10ths of 
1%) and the loss of 2024’s 1st quarter likewise amounted to 0.0018 (1/5th of 1%). 

- Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski stated to the Commission that on one or two of the investments made in 2024, both 
Finance Director Jacobs and Deputy Finance Director Schmidt agreed.  

- The unmodified opinion of the 2023 annual Audit from the State’s Auditor’s Office was highlighted to show the 
Commission that no funds in Burleigh County were mishandled or misplaced. 

- Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski further stated that Finance Director Jacobs’s report did not take into consideration the 
workforce issues and challenges effecting the Auditor/Treasurer’s office. Multiple hirings and re-hirings took place 
within the Auditor/Treasurer’s office across 2023. Furthermore, Splonskowski also explained that in 2024 the county 
Commission had transferred several duties historically held by the Finance Director over to his office but did not allow 
for the addition of new staff help disperse the workload (even removing a proposed accountant position in the 
Auditor/Treasurer’s office during the 2025 preliminary budget). Paired with the office’s standard election duties, the 
Auditor/Treasurer’s office – and the Deputy Auditor/Treasurer in particular – suffered from overwork and was thus 
prevented from researching & pursuing better investment options. 

Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski ended by stating that his office exceeded the budgeted yields, and that a combination of 
improving internal processes, a continued adherence to North Dakota century code, and the addition of new staff to the 
Auditor/Treasurer’s office would greatly help the investment process for Burleigh County. 

Tommy Collins approached the podium to express her opinions on Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski’s clarifications. 

Splonskowski presented to the Commission a recap on the November 5th, 2024, general election. Elections Coordinator Hart 
resigned during the general election process, her duties were reallocated within the office and members of the 
Auditor/Treasurer’s office took on more responsibilities to keep the process going. The Secretary of State’s office assisted the 
Auditor/Treasurer’s office in finding, correcting, and noting mistakes to prevent them from happening again, and other 
departments within Burleigh County lent available staff to the Auditor/Treasurer’s office to assist in daily election operations. 
Splonskowski informed the Commission that there were 52,866 ballots cast in total throughout the course of the general election, 

008



 

Page | 3 
 

which included 9,637 absentee votes, 19,065 early votes, and 24,164 votes cast on Election Day. Overall, Burleigh County saw a 
69.9 percent voter turnout, which beat the statewide turnout of 62.61 percent. 

Finance Director Jacobs addressed a couple of points before his items. Firstly, he stated that he took exception to any 
implications/accusations of unethical behavior on his part, and secondly, Finance Director Jacobs rebutted an earlier point made 
by Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski during his clarification presentation. Jacobs stated that in his report, he never claimed there 
was no turnover in the Auditor/Treasurer’s office during the 2023 year; rather, he had stated that there was no turnover in the 
Deputy Auditor/Treasurer position specifically. 

County Finance Director Jacobs gave an overview of both the 2023 Investment Report and the Q2 2024 & Q3 2024 Investment 
Returns. Jacobs stated that in 2023, Burleigh County underperformed the benchmark of a similar term investment in US 
treasuries by $751,055. The Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer is also responsible for investing Morton County’s sales taxes – in 
2023, Morton County underperformed the benchmark by $77,800. Burleigh County underperformed in 2023 mainly due to failure 
to invest, failure to capitalize on rising rates, and poor investment choices. Jacobs gave the following figures for each quarter in 
2024: 

- In Q1 of 2024, Burleigh County underperformed by $136,000, with Morton County underperforming by $26,000.  
- In Q2 of 2024, Burleigh County underperformed by $168,000, with Morton County underperforming by $19,000.  
- In Q3 of 2024, Burleigh County underperformed by $226,900, with Morton County underperforming by $38,000.  

Jacobs gave some clarification as to why the numbers in Q3 of 2024 were so high, the explanation being that Burleigh County at 
that time was engaged in some bond defeasance activity at the advice of the county’s bidding agent. If one were to remove the 
bond defeasance activity from Q3 of 2024, Burleigh County would underperform by $150,000, and Morton County would 
underperform by $25,000. Burleigh County underperformed in 2024 mainly due to a failure to invest and poor investment 
choices. Jacobs then touched on a couple of examples of a failure to invest along with other issues in 2023 under both 
Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski and the previous Auditor/Treasurer Leo Vetter. Jacobs stood for questions. 

County States Attorney Lawyer notified the Commission that in September 2024, the Burleigh County victim/witness program 
was awarded $110,285 in federal VOCA grants through the state of North Dakota for the period of October 1st, 2024 through 
September 30th, 2025. Lawyer also stated that in a memo on December 9th, 2024, the state of North Dakota allocated an 
additional $50,715 in federal VOCA grants to the Burleigh County victim/witness program for the period of October 1st, 2024, 
through June 30th, 2025. No further action was taken.  

States Attorney Lawyer then continued the discussion regarding the county’s internal investigation within the Auditor/Treasurer’s 
office, mainly regarding the topics of removing a position from office and converting an elected office into an appointed office. 
Lawyer presented a summary of laws related to removing a position from office, and then went into detail about how petition 
process works when a petition is submitted to the state governor’s office by either the public or the States Attorney. Additionally, 
Lawyer gave more insight into the process of what the Commission needed to do according to state law when converting an 
elected office into an appointed one. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to table the item until the next meeting. 
All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

Chris Legenfelder, Charles Tuttle, Curtis Jundt, and Steve Nagel were allowed to express their opinions concerning States 
Attorney Lawyer’s item on the investigation discussion. 

Chairman Bitner gave a report regarding the county’s standalone election computer. Before the election, the Secretary of State’s 
office had discovered that Burleigh County’s standalone election computer had been connected to the Internet. Since the Internet 
connection instantly compromised the computer’s internal security and could call into question the integrity of future elections, it 
had to be removed from the county and returned to its vendor for recalibration. Bitner also highlighted a ‘security assessment at 
first entry’ report from August 1st, 2024, written by officials at CISA (Cybersecurity Infrastructure Security Administration) of the 
Department of Homeland Security. In it, the report mentioned potential issues with the county’s standalone election computer. 

The Commission then began reviewing for consideration applications of Auxiliary Board members. Positions were open in the 
following boards & committees: Bismarck Planning Commission for an ETA member (1), Burleigh County Housing Authority (1), 
Burleigh County Human Service Zone Board (1), Burleigh County Park Board (2), Burleigh County School District 
Reorganizational Board (3), Burleigh County Water Resource Board (2), and Missouri Valley Complex Committee for a 

009



 

Page | 4 
 

Junior/High School Rodeo Appointee (1). Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to reappoint Trent Wangen to the 
Bismarck Planning Commission as an ETA member. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. Motion by Comm. 
Munson, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to reappoint Cynthia Chavez to the Burleigh County Housing Authority. All members present 
voted “AYE”. Motion carried. Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Munson to appoint Keli Berglund to the Burleigh County 
Human Service Zone Board. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. 
Munson to reappoint Errol Behm and Jeffery Herman to the Burleigh County Park Board. All members present voted “AYE”. 
Motion carried. Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Munson to table the positions for Burleigh County School District 
Reorganizational Board. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. Motion by Comm. Woodcox, 2nd by Comm. Munson 
to reappoint Roger Smith and appoint Chuck Mischel to the Burleigh County Water Resource Board. All members present voted 
“AYE”. Motion carried. Motion by Comm. Bakken to table the Junior/High School Rodeo Appointee position on the Missouri 
Valley Complex Committee. A consensus was reached among the commissioners to table the Junior/High School Rodeo 
Appointee position on the Missouri Valley Complex Committee. No further action was taken. 

County Engineer Hall presented to the Commission a pavement waiver request by a couple on Sandy River Drive. This request 
was essentially a reconsideration of a waiver which had been denied in 2016; the waiver had included a lot split and would’ve 
required both the reconstruction and paving of Fernwood Drive. Hall stated that he recommends approval of the current waiver 
(which will only do a lot split), with an added caveat which states that this approval doesn’t preclude the county or township from 
coming back in the future and requiring the individuals to share in the cost associated with rebuilding Fernwood Drive. Motion by 
Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to grant the waiver as recommended by Hall. All members present voted “AYE”. 
Motion carried. Hall then began a discussion about the bridge located on 236th St SE, as the deteriorating condition of the 
bridge’s timber deck, beams, and piling are an area of concern. The bridge has a current posted load of 10 tons. Hall stated that 
the county applied for federal bridge funds from the DOT in 2021 and were approved to receive funds by 2024; however, due to 
inflation the project and funds were pushed back to 2026. Hall proposed two options on how to tackle the issue. The first option 
would be to stay on schedule and replace the bridge in 2025, using local funds and tapping into reserve funds to pay for the 
bridge. The total estimated cost for replacing the bridge would lie between $900,000 and $1 million, and the bridge would be 
completed by the fall of 2025. The second option would be to wait an additional year for those federal funds from the DOT to 
arrive in 2026 (assuming there are no further delays). With this latter option, the county would be on the hook for only $250,000 
in local funds and the bridge would be completed by the fall of 2026. Hall also highlighted a major concern that the county at 
some point might need to close the bridge, which would greatly affect the people living in that area due to the bridge being on an 
important route. A detour route has already been planned and prepared, but all three legs of the detour would need some extra 
work to be more efficient and safer. Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Schwab to go with option one and stay on 
schedule to replace the bridge. All members present voted “AYE”. Motion carried. 

 
 
Meeting Adjourned. 
 
 
____________________________________                            ________________________________    
Mark Splonskowski, County Auditor/Treasurer                           Brian Bitner, Chairman 

010



Page | 1 

BURLEIGH COUNTY COMMISSION 
PUBLIC HEARING - STERLING 

MARCH 22nd, 2025 

2:00 PM Pledge of Allegiance 

Chairman Bitner called public hearing to order. 

Roll call of the members: Commissioners Bakken, Schwab, Woodcox, Munson, and Chairman Bitner present. 

Chair Bitner started the public hearing regarding the plan on redesignating the elective office of Burleigh 
County Auditor/Treasurer to appointive office and handed the meeting over to Vice-Chair Bakken. 

• Chair Bitner discussed information regarding the re-designation of the Auditor/Treasurer position to
an appointed position and the committee he created to analyze that information.

• Vice-Chair Bakken opened the public hearing to the public for comment. Travis Schweitzer, Sam
Schweitzer, Bo Rath, Jack McLean, Patrick Lengenfelder, Pamela Thompson, Kris Lengenfelder,
Lucas Lang, Wendy O’Neill, Patricia Schonert, Rebecca Lengenfelder, and Kip Rath all spoke
against the Auditor/Treasurer position becoming an appointed position. Melinda Berg spoke as
undecided regarding the Auditor/Treasurer position becoming an appointed position. County
Auditor/Treasurer Mark Splonskowski spoke against the Auditor/Treasurer position becoming an
appointed position and had further discussion with the Commission.

Meeting Adjourned 

_________________________ _________________________ 
Mark Splonskowski,  Brian Bitner, 
County Auditor/Treasurer Chairman 

011



 

Page | 1 
 

BURLEIGH COUNTY COMMISSION 
PUBLIC HEARING - WILTON 

MARCH 22nd, 2025 
 
10:00 AM Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Chairman Bitner called public hearing to order. 
 
Roll call of the members: Commissioners Bakken, Schwab, Woodcox, Munson, and Chairman Bitner present.  
 
Chair Bitner started the public hearing regarding the plan on redesignating the elective office of Burleigh 
County Auditor/Treasurer to appointive office and handed the meeting over to Vice-Chair Bakken. 
 

• Chair Bitner listed the upcoming public hearings of later today, March 22nd, at 2:00pm in Sterling and 
on March 29th at 10:30am in Bismarck. He made note of the online form for comments located at 
Burleigh.gov. 

• Vice-Chair Bakken opened the public hearing to the public for comment. Mary Ann Welder, David 
Bernhardt, and Dustin Gawrylow all spoke against the Auditor/Treasurer position becoming an 
appointed position. James Meyer and Karl Rakow spoke in favor of the Auditor/Treasurer position 
becoming an appointed position. David Jans and Debbie Jans all spoke as undecided regarding the 
Auditor/Treasurer position becoming an appointed position. 

• Comm. Bakken stated a reminder about the upcoming public hearings later today, March 22nd at 
2:00pm at the Sterling School, March 29th at 10:30am in the Tom Baker Meeting Room, and on April 
7th at 5:00pm at the regularly scheduled Commission meeting. 

 
Meeting Adjourned 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________    _________________________ 
Mark Splonskowski,     Brian Bitner, 
County Auditor/Treasurer    Chairman 

012



Page | 1 

BURLEIGH COUNTY COMMISSION 
PUBLIC HEARING - BISMARCK

MARCH 29th, 2025 

10:30 AM Invocation by Vice-Chair Bakken and Pledge of Allegiance 

Vice-Chairman Bakken called public hearing to order. 

Roll call of the members: Commissioners Schwab, Woodcox, Munson, and Vice-Chairman Bakken present. 
Chairman Bitner was absent. 

Vice-Chair Bakken started the public hearing regarding the plan on redesignating the elective office of 
Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer to appointive office. 

• Vice-Chair Bakken listed the upcoming public hearing of the next regularly scheduled Commission
meeting on April 7th at 5:00pm in the Tom Baker Room.

• Vice-Chair Bakken opened the public hearing to the public for comment. Doug Schonert and Robert
Disney all spoke against the Auditor/Treasurer position becoming an appointed position. Roger
Lawyer spoke in favor of the Auditor/Treasurer position becoming an appointed position. Gaylynn
Becker spoke as undecided regarding the Auditor/Treasurer position becoming an appointed
position. County Auditor/Treasurer Mark Splonskowski spoke against the Auditor/Treasurer position
becoming an appointed position and had a discussion with the Commission in regards.

• Vice-Chair Bakken reminded the people that public comment can still be submitted at Burleigh.gov.

Meeting Adjourned 

_________________________ _________________________ 
Mark Splonskowski,  Brian Bitner, 
County Auditor/Treasurer Chairman 

013



 

Page | 1 
 

 
BURLEIGH COUNTY COMMISSION 

SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 
PROVIDENT BUILDING REMODEL 

APRIL 2nd, 2025 
 

10:00 AM 
 
Chairman Bitner called the Burleigh County Commission special meeting to order.  
 
A roll call of members: Commissioners Munson, Bakken, Woodcox, Schwab, and Chairman Bitner were 
present. 
 
Alicia Fadley and Dan Schaff from HTG Architects presented information about the bids that were received 
for the Provident Building Renovation. The three bids that were received for general contractor were Roers, 
Capital City Construction, and Northwest Contracting. One bid was received for the electrical contract from 
Magnum Electric and no bids were received for the mechanical contract. Discussion was had on the bids 
received and how to proceed going forward. Human Services Zone Director Chelsea Flory and Emergency 
Management Director Mary Senger gave input.  

Chair Bitner had requested information from HTG on what the cost to build a new building would be. Schaff 
broke down the costs and stated that a new building would cost between $40,000,000 and $52,000,000 not 
including the land acquisition. Comm. Munson mentioned that the cost to remodel the Provident Building 
would be $13,000,000 to $15,000,000 and brought up the option of buying a different building. Chair Bitner 
and Comm. Bakken stated that they had looked into buying a different building and that there wasn’t any 
buildings available that matched the size needed by the county. Discussion was had. 

Motion by Comm. Munson, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to approve the re-bidding of the electrical contract, 
mechanical contract, the asbestos abatement, and the repair to the roof of the Provident Building. All 
members present voted ‘AYE’. Motion carried. 

Comm. Woodcox started a discussion about the funding for the Provident Building Renovation. 
Auditor/Treasurer Splonskowski stated that the County received $7,000,000 in ARPA funds for the project. 
Comm. Woodcox mentioned that with the renovation having a cost of $15,000,000 less the $7,000,000 that 
leaves the County with $8,000,000 to fund. Finance Director Leigh Jacobs presented options for funding the 
remainder of the project which included current monies available and borrowing. Discussion was had. 

Dan Schaff stated that a longer construction period then originally planned for will result in additional costs 
for HTG which will have to be billed to the County. Chair Bitner requested that this item be added to the April 
7th, 2025 Commission Meeting for discussion. 

Meeting adjourned.  

 
 
______________________________                      ________________________________  
Mark Splonskowski, Auditor/Treasurer                     Brian Bitner, Chairman 

014



 

Page | 1 
 

BURLEIGH COUNTY COMMISSION 
MEETING MINUTES 
MARCH 17th, 2025 

 
5:00 PM Invocation by Chaplain and Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Chairman Bitner called the regular meeting of the Burleigh County Commission to order. 
 
Roll call of the members: Commissioners Bakken, Schwab, Woodcox, and Chairman Bitner present. 
Commissioner Munson was absent. 
 
Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to approve the meeting agenda with discussion on Comm. 
Bakken’s trip to Washington DC being added to other business. All members present voted ‘AYE’.  Motion 
carried. 
 
Chair Bitner listed the following meeting minutes which still needed approval; December 16th, 2024, and 
March 3rd, 2025 meeting minutes as well as the approval of the bills. 
 

• Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Schwab to approve the bills. All members present voted 
‘AYE’. Motion carried. 

• Motion by Comm. Woodcox, 2nd by Comm. Schwab to approve the March 3rd, 2025 meeting minutes. 
All members present voted ‘AYE’. Motion carried. 

• Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to table the December 16th, 2025 meeting 
minutes. All members present voted ‘AYE’. Motion carried. 

 
The following abatements were presented for the Board’s consideration; a complete copy of which are on file 
and available for inspection in the office of the Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer. 
 

Owner 
Tax 
Year Legal Description Credit Type 

Current 
MV 

Reduced 
MV 

Jade Falcon 2024 
Lot 13, Block 4, Pheasant 

Valley 
80% Disabled 

Veteran $642,000 $480,000 
Jascon & Carla 

Rundquist 2024 
Lot 9, Block 7, Sattler's 

Sunrise 7th 
100% Disabled 

Veteran $158,300 $140,300 

Harvey & Barbara 
Jackson 2024 

N 16' of Lot 28, all Lot 29, 
& S17' of Lot 30, Block 38, 

Fisher 

50% 
Homestead 

Credit $139,700 $69,850 

Janice Nesja 2024 

Unit 4 3312 Arrowhead 
Condos, Lot 22, Block 1, 

Pebble Crk 8th Replat 

50% 
Homestead 

Credit $311,800 $211,800 

Gary & Paula 
Hofland 2023 

Unit 8 Bldg 1403 
Baumgartner's Sharloh Lp 

Condos, Lot 8, Block 4, 
East Hills Add Replat 

100% 
Homestead 

Credit $1,100 $0 

015



Page | 2 

Gary & Paula 
Hofland 2024 

Unit 8 Bldg 1403 
Baumgartner's Sharloh Lp 

Condos, Lot 8, Block 4, 
East Hills Add Replat 

50% 
Homestead 

Credit $3,400 $1,700 

Curtis Mertz 2025 
1985 Schult 48 x 28, serial 

#RF198858AB 

50% 
Homestead 

Credit $28,103 $14,052 

Greg & Tracey 
Runyon 2025 2002 Atlantic 27 x 56 

50% 
Homestead 

Credit $60,329 $30,164 

Clifton Erickson 2024 

S50' of N200' of W1/2 less 
W30' of Blk 17, Block 17, 

Lincoln 

100% 
Homestead 

Credit $220,400 $20,400 

Charles & Sandra 
Ketterling 2023 

Lot 2, Block 11, Lincoln 
Replat of B11 

50% 
Homestead 

Credit $223,800 $123,800 

Charles & Sandra 
Ketterling 2024 

Lot 2, Block 11, Lincoln 
Replat of B11 

50% 
Homestead 

Credit $237,500 $137,500 

Michael Brown 2023 

Unit 12 & garage 1 bldg 
2106 Washington Court 
Condos, Lot B of Lot 1, 
Block 13, Replat Homan 

Acres 

100% 
Homestead 

Credit $113,200 $0 

Michael Brown 2024 

Unit 12 & garage 1 bldg 
2106 Washington Court 
Condos, Lot B of Lot 1, 
Block 13, Replat Homan 

Acres 

100% 
Homestead 

Credit $119,200 $0 

James & Cynthia 
Vollmer 2024 Lot 6, Block 2, Indian Hills 

50% 
Homestead 

Credit $284,200 $184,200 

Todd & Gabrielle 
Sutton 2024 

N10' of Lot 23, all Lot 24, & 
S10' of Lot 25, Block 67, 

McKenzie & Coffin's 
90% Disabled 

Veteran $238,100 $197,600 
Nancy & Jorge 

PichardoQuezada 2024 
Lot 1, Block 1, Southbay 

4th Add 2nd Replat 
70% Disabled 

Veteran $230,200 $156,700 

Duane & Juanita 
Martin 2025 

2016 Fairmont 28 x 64, 
serial #MY16-128538ABK 

50% 
Homestead 

Credit $111,821 $55,910 

Robert Christenson 2023 
Lot 14, Block 19, 

Morningside Heights 

100% 
Homestead 

Credit $217,300 $17,300 

Mary Wieben 2024 
Lot 12, Block 17, 

Washington Heights 10th 

50% 
Homestead 

Credit $295,000 $195,000 

016



 

Page | 3 
 

Curtis Mertz 2023 
1985 Schult 48 x 28, serial 

#RF198858AB 

50% 
Homestead 

Credit $28,103 $14,051 

Curtis Mertz 2024 
1985 Schult 48 x 28, serial 

#RF198858AB 

50% 
Homestead 

Credit $28,103 $14,051 

Larry Ensz 2025 
1995 Royalton 16 x 76, 

serial #9423361A 

100% 
Homestead 

Credit $34,145 $0 

Ernest Erhardt 2024 
Lot A of Lots 8-9, North 

Star Acres 

50% 
Homestead 

Credit $384,000 $284,000 

Daryl & Twila 
Wanner 2025 

1994 Schult 64 x 28, serial 
#R263514AB 

50% 
Homestead 

Credit $55,158 $27,579 

Marty & Judy 
Grothe 2023 

1990 Marshfield Executive 
17 x 76, VIN #062339 

100% 
Homestead 

Credit $26,290 $0 

Tim Heckelsmiller 2024 
1981 Chicasaw 70 x 14, 

VIN #6544w 

Mobile home 
removed from 

lot in 2024 $10,349 $0 

Tracy & Cynthia 
Vanous 2023 

Lots 1, 2, and 4, Block 1, 
Schultz 

50% 
Homestead 

Credit $352,300 $252,300 

Amelia Schweitzer 2024 
Unit 4 Calgary Condos, Lot 
3, Block 1, North Hills 7th 

100% 
Homestead 

Credit $182,500 $0 

Jeffery & Victoria 
Haas 2024 

Unit 4 & garage 4 (bldg 
872) San Angelo Dr Condo 
Assoc, Lots 3-5, Block 2, 

Cottonwood Lake 5th 

50% 
Homestead 

Credit $208,600 $108,600 

Kenneth & Alvinia 
Buchholz 2024 

Lot 5, Block 20, Meadow 
Valley 4th 

50% 
Homestead 

Credit $245,700 $145,700 

Marlene Streeper 2024 

Unit 3084 Pheasant Run 
Condo, part of Lot 4, Block 

2, Tatley Meadows V 

50% 
Homestead 

Credit $185,000 $92,500 

Carleton & Yvonne 
Logan 2023 Lot 11, Block 2, the Pointe 

100% 
Homestead 

Credit $350,700 $150,700 

Carleton Logan 2024 Lot 11, Block 2, the Pointe 

100% 
Homestead 

Credit $367,100 $167,100 

Roger Allen & 
Sandra Thomsen 2024 

Lot 10-11 less 10' x 117.5' 
tract in Lot 11, Block 2, 

Baldwin Townsite 

50% 
Homestead 

Credit $74,100 $37,050 

017



 

Page | 4 
 

 
Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to approve the Jade Falcon, Jascon & Carla Rundquist, 
Harvey & Barbara Jackson, Janice Nesja, Gary & Paula Hofland, Curtis Mertz, Greg & Tracey Runyon, Clifton 
Erickson, Charles & Sandra Ketterling, Michael Brown, James & Cynthia Vollmer, Todd & Gabrielle Sutton, 
Nancy & Jorge PichardoQuezada, Duane & Juanita Martin, Robert Christenson, Mary Wieben, Curtis Mertz, 
Larry Ensz, Ernest Erhardt, Daryl & Twila Wanner, Marty & Judy Grothe, Tim Heckelsmiller, Tracy & Cynthia 
Vanous, Amelia Schweitzer, Jeffery & Victoria Haas, Kenneth & Alvinia Buchholz, Marlene Streeper, Carleton 
& Yvonne Logan, Carleton Logan, Roger Allen & Sandra Thomsen abatements and the consent agenda in 
its entirety. All members present voted ‘AYE’. Motion carried. 

Chair Bitner started the public hearing regarding the plan on redesignating the elective office of Burleigh 
County Auditor/Treasurer to appointive office and handed the meeting over to Vice-Chair Bakken. 
 

• Vice-Chair Bakken listed information on the upcoming public hearings. March 22nd at 10:00am in 
Wilton and at 2:00pm in Sterling. March 29th at 10:30am in Bismarck and April 7th, 2025 at the 
regularly scheduled 5:00pm commission meeting. Comm. Bakken also made note of the online form 
for comments located at Burleigh.gov. 

• Vice-Chair Bakken opened the public hearing to the public for comment. Mike Connelly, Kyle 
Engelhardt, Jonathan Hooker, Travis Jensen, Ryan Marquart, Tim Mattson, Francis Schweitzer, 
Trina Schweitzer all spoke against the Auditor/Treasurer position becoming an appointed position. 
Joe Gross and Michelle Jundt spoke in favor of the Auditor/Treasurer position becoming an 
appointed position. Vice-Chair Bakken passed the meeting back to Chair Bitner. 

• Chair Bitner responded to a news article regarding a cut to the Senior Citizen’s budget. He spoke on 
a comment that he heard about the Finance Department being forbid to assist the Auditor/Treasurer 
in the County budgeting process and that it never happened. On request, Finance Director Leigh 
Jacobs spoke on this comment and referenced three different occasions the Finance Department 
met with the Auditor/Treasurer to work on the budget. He also referenced a meeting that occurred in 
2024. There was discussion regarding the delay in posting the budget on the county website. Chair 
Bitner then listed the audit adjustments from the 2023 audit performed by the State Auditor’s Office. 

 
County Engineer Marcus Hall presented a resolution to waive the pavement policy, at this time, for the 
proposed plat for Ski Haven LLP. Motion by Comm. Bakken, 2nd by Woodcox to approve the resolution to 
waive the pavement policy, at this time, for Ski Haven LLP. All members present voted ‘AYE’. Motion carried. 
 
County States Attorney Julie Lawyer presented a request for a salary variance for an investigator position. 
Motion by Comm. Schwab, 2nd by Comm. Bakken to approve the salary variance. All members present voted 
‘AYE’. Motion carried. 
 
The Commission had a discussion regarding the rental agreement between Burleigh County and the City of 
Bismarck for the City/County Building and the Courthouse. Comm. Bakken noted that the City of Bismarck 
was inquiring about the rental agreements and any changes that might take place that would affect those. 
Chair Bitner stated that the County has to wait until the Provident Building remodel finish date is established 
to make a decision on the City/County Building and that no changes are needed at the Courthouse. 

018



 

Page | 5 
 

 
County Emergency Management Director Mary Senger presented a request for a County burn ban. Mary 
stated that she has heard back from all but one Fire Chief and they are all for instituting these restrictions. 
Chair Bitner made note of a local fire and commended the staff that responded and extinguished it. Comm. 
Bakken, 2nd by Comm. Woodcox to institute the burn ban. All members voted ‘AYE’. Motion carried. 
 
In other business, Comm. Bakken discussed his trip to Washington DC for a carbon sequestration 
conference. Comm. Schwab spoke about the Summit Carbon Pipeline and reminded people of the Primary 
Residence Property Tax Credit which can be applied for until March 31st, 2025. Comm. Schwab brought up 
an issue regarding Election Workers and the delay in receiving their tax forms. He asked Auditor/Treasurer 
Splonskowski to come up and answer some questions. Splonskowski, Human Resources Director Pam 
Binder, and the Commission had a discussion regarding the Election Worker tax forms. Chair Bitner 
requested a copy of the meeting recordings and emails, mentioned by Binder, be sent to him and the State’s 
Attorney. Comm. Bakken noted the upcoming public hearing dates and  a reminder of the online form to 
submit comments. 
 
 
Meeting Adjourned 
 
 
 
 
 
_________________________    _________________________ 
Mark Splonskowski,     Brian Bitner, 
County Auditor/Treasurer    Chairman 

019



The following list of abatements and settlement of taxes is forwarded for action to the Burleigh County Commission: 

Abate # Owner Tax Year Legal Description Credit Type Current MV Reduced MV

24-695 Ida & Benjamin Erickson 2023 Lot 3, Block 2, East Valley Estates 100% Disabled Veteran $403,400 $331,400

24-696 James & Marie Mills 2024
Auditor's Lot 8 in SW1/4, Section 17, Apple 
Creek Township

Error in property 
description $193,600 $167,600

25-180
New Fortune Real Estate 
LLC 2023 Lot 8, Block 12, Riverview

Error in property 
description $347,900 $280,200

25-181
New Fortune Real Estate 
LLC 2024 Lot 8, Block 12, Riverview

Error in property 
description $345,700 $280,200

25-182 Tyler Maher 2024
Lot 3, Block 6, Boulder Ridge 2nd Addn, 
plus undiv. Interest in common areas 90% Disabled Veteran $406,800 $285,300

25-188 Richard & Marilyn Strom 2023 Lot 8, Block 7, Wheatland Hills 50% Homestead Credit $253,600 $153,600

25-189 Richard & Marilyn Strom 2024 Lot 8, Block 7, Wheatland Hills 50% Homestead Credit $270,700 $170,700

25-190 Cecil & Darcie Uglow 2023 Lot 10, Block 3, Replat of Calkins 50% Homestead Credit $168,900 $84,450

25-191 Cecil & Darcie Uglow 2024 Lot 10, Block 3, Replat of Calkins 50% Homestead Credit $168,300 $84,150

25-192 Kevin Murschel 2023 S20' of Lot 1 Unit C, Block 2, Arman 50% Homestead Credit $167,400 $83,700

25-193 Kevin Murschel 2024 S20' of Lot 1 Unit C, Block 2, Arman 100% Homestead Credit $175,600 $0

25-194 Donavon Hatzenbuhler 2024
Unit 114 Pinecrest Condo, Lots 9-12 & 
W10.2' of Lot 13, Block 14, Wachter's 2nd 50% Disabled Veteran $105,300 $52,650

25-195 Tanner & Ashley Russell 2024 Lot 2, Block 9, Washington Heights 2nd 50% Disabled Veteran $350,700 $260,700

25-196 Wayne & Sharon Keeler 2025 2011 28 x 56, ser #220AB 50% Homestead Credit $90,709 $45,355

25-197 Darlene Kelley 2023 Lot 10, Block 3, Jennings 1st 100% Homestead Credit $223,400 $23,400

020



25-198 Darlene Kelley 2024 Lot 10, Block 3, Jennings 1st 100% Homestead Credit $229,600 $29,600

25-199 Roberta Nelson 2023 Lot 3, Block 7, Wachter's 6th 50% Homestead Credit $274,000 $174,000

25-200 Eric Juno 2024 1971 Townhouse Rollohome 66 x 14
Mobile home removed 

from lot in 2024 $7,288 $0

25-201 Eric Juno 2025 1971 Townhouse Rollohome 66 x 14
Mobile home removed 

from lot in 2024 $7,288 $0

25-202 Timothy Keller 2024 1972 Schult 58 x 14, VIN #I109723
Mobile home removed 

from lot in 2024 $6,428 $0

25-203 Timothy Keller 2025 1972 Schult 58 x 14, VIN #I109723
Mobile home removed 

from lot in 2024 $6,428 $0

25-204 Virgil Kuntz 2024 1970 Star 64 x 14
Mobile home removed 

from lot in 2024 $7,169 $0

25-205 Virgil Kuntz 2025 1970 Star 64 x 14
Mobile home removed 

from lot in 2024 $7,169 $0

25-206 Marriah Potter 2023 1970 Kenwood 66 x 14, VIN #R321
Mobile home removed 

from lot in 2023 $7,288 $0

25-207 Marriah Potter 2024 1970 Kenwood 66 x 14, VIN #R321
Mobile home removed 

from lot in 2023 $7,288 $0

25-208 Marriah Potter 2025 1970 Kenwood 66 x 14, VIN #R321
Mobile home removed 

from lot in 2023 $7,288 $0

25-209 Derle Marchus 2024 1977 Rollohome 66 x 14, VIN 31802
Mobile home removed 

from lot $8,285 $0

021



25-210 Derle Marchus 2025 1977 Rollohome 66 x 14, VIN 31802
Mobile home removed 

from lot $8,285 $0

25-211 Claudine Pochant 2025 1998 Schult 16 x 76, serial #R280513 50% Homestead Credit $36,675 $18,337

25-212 Marvin Herauf 2025 1979 Atlantic 56 x 24, serial #479014-3230 100% Homestead Credit $14,918 $0

25-213 Marlys Geinert 2024
Lot A of Lot 6 & Lot A of Lot 7 less that part 
taken for R/W, Block 0, Pollock's Addn

Error in property 
description $264,400 $185,100

25-214 Dale & Ellen Schafer 2024
Lot 4, Block 1, Promontory Point IV 2nd 
Replat 100% Disabled Veteran $572,700 $392,700

25-215 Larry Holzer 2024
Lot 14 less N15', Block 16, Lincoln Replat B 
16 100% Homestead Credit $205,300 $5,300

25-216 Katherine Hager 2023 Lot 10, Block 11, Replat pt Marian Park 2nd 50% Homestead Credit $208,300 $108,300

25-217 Katherine Hager 2024 Lot 10, Block 11, Replat pt Marian Park 2nd 50% Homestead Credit $232,500 $132,500

25-218 Vaughn Chesrown 2024
Lot 2 except E2' & E4' of Lot 1, Block 6, 
North Hills 1st 50% Homestead Credit $224,900 $124,900

25-219 Jerome Rodgers 2024 Lot 2, Block 1, Gateway 3rd 100% Homestead Credit $440,400 $240,400

25-220 Marcy Krueger 2024 Lot 15, Block 1, Welle 100% Homestead Credit $370,500 $170,500

25-224 Rosella Ohlhauser 2024 1979 Medallion 68 x 16, serial #5193N 100% Homestead Credit $10,805 $0

25-225 Rosella Ohlhauser 2025 1979 Medallion 68 x 16, serial #5193N 100% Homestead Credit $10,805 $0

25-226 Donald DuFrame 2024 Lot 4, Block 4, Fort Lincoln Est #1 100% Homestead Credit $259,200 $59,200

25-227 Donald DuFrame 2025 Lot 4, Block 4, Fort Lincoln Est #1 100% Homestead Credit $237,300 $37,300

25-228 Marcia Barnes 2023 Lot 9, Block 18, S & W Third 50% Homestead Credit $174,800 $74,800

022



25-229 Laurie Jean Newman 2025 1999 Schult 28 x 64, serial #R288353AB 50% Homestead Credit $65,372 $32,686

25-230 Bernice Fuchs 2023 Lots 9-10, Block 26, Sturgis 100% Homestead Credit $207,600 $7,600

25-231 Gerald & Susan Tschider 2024 S60' of Lot 3, Block 2, Jennings 1st 50% Homestead Credit $297,400 $197,400

25-232 Margaret Elkin 2024 Lot 3, Block 1, Register's 1st 50% Homestead Credit $176,500 $88,250

25-233
Rodney & Marlene 
Hanson 2024

Unit 1433 Washington Circle Condos, Aud 
Lots 1-2 of Lots A-F of Lots 23-26, Block 30, 
Wachter's 3rd 100% Homestead Credit $219,000 $19,000

25-234 Alvina Mehlhoff 2024
Lot 14, Block 1, Weston Village 1st &b 
undivided int in common area 50% Homestead Credit $245,000 $145,000

25-235 Marilyn Campbell 2024
Unit 3E the Sheraton Condo, Aud Lot A, 
Gateway Commons 100% Homestead Credit $134,100 $0

25-236 Ronald Dockter 2025
2009 Friendship 64 x 28, serial 
#MY0931412AB

Combined parcels - 
moved mobile home w/ 

parcel CW-142-76-00-09-
120 $103,667 $0

25-237 Lorraine Ferderer 2023
Lot 3, Block 2, Cottonwood Lake 6th Add 
Replat 50% Homestead Credit $328,300 $228,300

25-238 Lorraine Ferderer 2024
Lot 3, Block 2, Cottonwood Lake 6th Add 
Replat 50% Homestead Credit $315,600 $215,600

25-239 Carleen Hennenfent 2023

Unit XXV Meadow Brook Condos, Lot 55 
less N150', Block 23, Southwood Terrace 
2nd Replat 100% Homestead Credit $234,600 $34,600

25-240 Carleen Hennenfent 2024

Unit XXV Meadow Brook Condos, Lot 55 
less N150', Block 23, Southwood Terrace 
2nd Replat 100% Homestead Credit $246,400 $46,400

25-241 James Fetter 2023
Lots 9-10 less W20' for alley, Block 41, 
Flannery & Wetherby 50% Homestead Credit $321,500 $221,500

25-242 James Fetter 2024
Lots 9-10 less W20' for alley, Block 41, 
Flannery & Wetherby 50% Homestead Credit $339,800 $239,800

023



25-243 Patricia Stadig 2025 1986 Riveroaks 16 x 76, serial #981 100% Homestead Credit $22,934 $0

25-244 Janice Jensen 2024 Lot 9, Block 23, S & W 6th Addn 100% Homestead Credit $215,000 $15,000

25-245 Joan Orvik 2025 1987 Bellavista 76 x 16, serial #78 A15685 100% Homestead Credit $24,612 $0

25-246 Judy Braley 2023 2012 Redman 32 x 68, ser #A000579AB 100% Homestead Credit $131,539 $0

25-247 Judy Braley 2024 2012 Redman 32 x 68, ser #A000579AB 50% Homestead Credit $131,539 $65,769

25-249 Margaret Kiefer 2023
Unit 3214 Hay Creek Meadows Condos, 
Lots 6-9, Block 4, Hay Creek Meadows 50% Homestead Credit $196,100 $98,050

25-250 Margaret Kiefer 2024
Unit 3214 Hay Creek Meadows Condos, 
Lots 6-9, Block 4, Hay Creek Meadows 50% Homestead Credit $203,000 $103,000

25-251 Richard Lorenz 2023
E100' of Lots 11-12, Block 46, Governor 
Pierce 50% Homestead Credit $234,900 $134,900

25-252 Richard Lorenz 2024
E100' of Lots 11-12, Block 46, Governor 
Pierce 50% Homestead Credit $240,000 $140,000

25-253 James & Jane Morgan 2024 Lot 8, Block 8, Highland Acres 100% Homestead Credit $340,100 $140,100

25-254 Leora & Dirk Bauer 2024 Lot 14, Block 2, Meadow Valley 50% Homestead Credit $291,100 $191,100

25-255 Bob & Patty Gefre 2023
Unit 3335 Rolling Hills Condos I, Lot 1, 
Block 1, East Hills Addn Replat 50% Homestead Credit $314,800 $214,800

25-256 Beverly Prom 2025 1992 Schult 28 x 56, serial #R255399AB 50% Homestead Credit $39,984 $19,992

25-257 Brenda Medeiros 2024

Lot 12, Block 2, Edgewood Village 1st & 
undiv int in common areas Lots 1, 10, 14, 
23, 34, 39, & 50 100% Homestead Credit $390,700 $190,700

024



25-258 Andy Schmit 2024

Lot 8 less SELY 2', said 2' being measured 
adj & parallel to lot line common to Lots 7-
8 & SELY 2'Lot 9 said 2' meas adj & parallel 
to Lots 8-9, Block 1, the Pointe 50% Homestead Credit $369,600 $269,600

25-259 Marlyn Pegors 2024 SW1/4 28-139-76 100% Homestead Credit $35,400 $0

25-260 Bonnie & Bruce Trom 2024 Lot 5, Block 4, Fort Lincoln Est #1 50% Homestead Credit $331,000 $231,000

25-261 Bonnie & Bruce Trom 2025 Lot 5, Block 4, Fort Lincoln Est #1 50% Homestead Credit $293,400 $193,400

25-262 Linda Masseth 2023

Unit 12 & garage 8, Washington Court 
Condos Bldg 2036, Lot C, Block 13, Replat 
Homan Acres 100% Homestead Credit $113,700 $0

25-263 Linda Masseth 2024

Unit 12 & garage 8, Washington Court 
Condos Bldg 2036, Lot C, Block 13, Replat 
Homan Acres 100% Homestead Credit $119,700 $0

25-264 Barb Schantz 2023

Unit 120, Riverside Park Condos, pt of 
NW1/4NW1/4 sec 5 & pt of gov lot 1 sec 6 
138-80, Block 5, City Lands 138-80 100% Homestead Credit $234,700 $34,700

25-265 Barb Schantz 2024

Unit 120, Riverside Park Condos, pt of 
NW1/4NW1/4 sec 5 & pt of gov lot 1 sec 6 
138-80, Block 5, City Lands 138-80 100% Homestead Credit $217,400 $17,400

25-266
Scott & Corey Detling -
Garry & Betty Detling- 2023 Lot 15, Block 2, Vision Heights 50% Homestead Credit $92,200 $46,100

25-267
Scott & Corey Detling -
Garry & Betty Detling- 2024 Lot 15, Block 2, Vision Heights 50% Homestead Credit $102,700 $51,350

25-268 Veronica Schneider 2024

Unit 17 & parking space 8 & storage area 
14 & undivided int in common area, Lots 3-
6, Block 1, Replat of Calkins 100% Homestead Credit $104,300 $0

025



25-269 Betty Peterson 2023 Lot 16, Block 2, Northridge 100% Homestead Credit $172,000 $0

25-270 John Weisz 2024 Lot 9, Block 9, Marian Park 1st 100% Homestead Credit $251,400 $51,400

25-271 Leora & Dirk Bauer 2023 Lot 14, Block 2, Meadow Valley 50% Homestead Credit $274,600 $174,600

25-272 Tim & Patty Thorsness 2024

Lot 7 less 683 sq ft in tract beg @ NW cor 
Lot 7 NELY along N L line 160.38 to NE cor 
58.67' 50% Homestead Credit $235,200 $135,200

25-273 Connie Heer 2024
Lot 2B of Lot 2, Block 2, Kilber North 
Addition 50% Homestead Credit $309,200 $209,200

25-274 Brian Burkett 2024 Lot 7, Block 21, Meadow Valley 4th 50% Homestead Credit $270,700 $170,700

25-275 Cynthia Sanford 2023 W 40' of Lot 19, Block 4, Gateway Addn 50% Homestead Credit $301,200 $201,200

25-276 Beverly Herner 2024
Unit 201 Capital Arms Condos, Lot 9, Block 
7, Casey's 2nd 50% Homestead Credit $161,800 $80,900

25-277 Semsudin (Sam) Basic 2025 1977 Holly Park 14 x 66, serial #M604297 100% Homestead Credit $7,983 $0

25-278 Gary & Margo Dietz 2024 Lot 12, Block 1, Briardale 100% Disabled Veteran $334,800 $154,800

25-279 Sandy Svihla 2025 1974 Rollohome 70 x 14, serial #J1276 100% Homestead Credit $7,814 $0

25-280 Brenda McLellan 2024 Lot 4, Block 2, Apple Meadows 2nd 50% Homestead Credit $347,400 $247,400

25-281 Kim & Debbie Sabot 2024
Unit 2 East Hills Condo 1509+1519, Lots 2-
3, Block 3, East Hills Addn Replat 50% Homestead Credit $326,300 $226,300

25-282 Deborah Frank 2024

Unit 13, South Aires Condo, S76' of Lot 2, 
all Lot 3 & N34' of Lot 4, Block 17, 
Wachter's 2nd 100% Homestead Credit $102,700 $0

25-283 Rosemary Ridley 2023 Lot 3, Block 2, Wachter's 5th 100% Homestead Credit $238,400 $38,400

026



25-284 Rosemary Ridley 2024 Lot 3, Block 2, Wachter's 5th 100% Homestead Credit $243,200 $43,200

25-288 Brenda Hausauer 2023 Lot 2, Block 6, Marian Park 2nd 50% Homestead Credit $248,700 $148,700

25-289 Brenda Hausauer 2024 Lot 2, Block 6, Marian Park 2nd 50% Homestead Credit $267,000 $167,000

25-290 Lynette Lewis 2025 1970 Blairhouse 66 x 14, serial #5505Z 100% Homestead Credit $7,096 $0

25-292 Charlie Deichert 2024 Lot 14, Block 2, Sattler's Sunrise 1st 50% Homestead Credit $282,600 $182,600

25-293 Cynthia Kellogg 2024

Unit 3 Owens Ave Condos, S170' of Lot 12 
less Lot 12A, Block 18, Replat Tibesar's 1st 
Subdivision 50% Homestead Credit $185,800 $92,900

25-294 Ronda Fox 2024

Unit A Bldg 3212 Arrow Head Ranch, Lots 
4,6,8,10, Block 1, Pebble Creek 8th Rpt & 
Lot 15 less WLY 148' of SLY 180', Block 2, 
Pebble Creek 8th 100% Homestead Credit $306,900 $106,900

25-295 Lavata Becker 2024
Lot 16, Block 4, Cottonwood Parkview 
Addn 100% Homestead Credit $484,900 $351,567

25-296 Steven Rustand 2023 N57.5' of Lot 6, Block 10, Riverview 100% Homestead Credit $192,100 $0

25-297 Steven Rustand 2024 N57.5' of Lot 6, Block 10, Riverview 50% Homestead Credit $194,500 $97,250

25-298 Eileen Bavendick 2023 Lot 2, Block 19, Jenning's 4th 100% Homestead Credit $279,400 $79,400

25-299 Eileen Bavendick 2024 Lot 2, Block 19, Jenning's 4th 100% Homestead Credit $279,900 $79,900

25-300 Dennis & Joan Peltz 2023 Lot 18, Block 4, Heritage Park Addn 50% Homestead Credit $485,100 $385,100

25-301 Dennis & Joan Peltz 2024 Lot 18, Block 4, Heritage Park Addn 50% Homestead Credit $514,600 $414,600

25-302 Barb Knutson 2023 NE1/4 29-139-77 100% Homestead Credit $128,100 $0

027



25-303 Barb Knutson 2024 NE1/4 29-139-77 50% Homestead Credit $138,600 $69,300

25-304 Fabian John Kramer 2023 Lot 5, Block 00, B + R Estates 100% Homestead Credit $238,900 $138,900

25-305 Fabian John Kramer 2024 Lot 5, Block 00, B + R Estates 100% Homestead Credit $248,400 $148,400

25-306 Jean Kessler 2023
Unit 209 Ave C Townhouses, N1/3 of Lot 7 
& all Lot 8, Block 10, Northern Pacific 100% Homestead Credit $87,000 $0

25-307 Jean Kessler 2024
Unit 209 Ave C Townhouses, N1/3 of Lot 7 
& all Lot 8, Block 10, Northern Pacific 100% Homestead Credit $96,000 $0

028



029



030



031

Mark Splonskowski
Line



032



033



034



035



036



N
D

  H
W

Y 
 1

4

U
S 

 H
W

Y 
 8

3

I-94 WB OFF-RAMP (EXIT 182)

I-94

I-94 WB ON-RAMP

(EXIT 182)

30TH AVE NE

Scale in Feet

0 80

THOMAS D.
WEIGEL
LS-10871
PE-28797

DATE

“ ”

N

W E

S

moore
●

●
www.mooreengineeringinc.com

engineering, inc.

PLAT OF

RRH SUBDIVISION




THTTTTTTTTT OMASSSSSSSSSSS DDDDDDDDDDDDDDD.
WEIGGGGGGGELELELELELELELELLELE
LS-11111111108000000000 711111
PEPEPEEPEEEEE-2-2--2-2-2-28787878878788787878 97979779797979797

DAAAAAAAAAAAADAAAATTTTTETTTTTTT

Timothy J. Doty, II

037



038



039



040



041



 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 6 

042



National Public Safety Telecommunications Week 
 

April 13 – 19, 2025 
 

Whereas, emergencies can occur at any time that require law enforcement, fire, or emergency medical 
services; and 
 
Whereas, when an emergency occurs, the prompt response of law enforcement officers, firefighters, and 
emergency medical personnel is critical to the protection of life and preservation of property; and 
 
Whereas, the safety of our law enforcement officers, firefighters, and emergency medical personnel is 
dependent upon the quality and accuracy of information obtained from citizens who call the Central 
Dakota Communications Center; and 
 
Whereas, Public Safety Communications Specialists are the first, first responders, delivering essential 
pre-arrival instructions, and providing the most critical link that our citizens have with emergency 
services; and 
 
Whereas, Public Safety Communications Specialists are the single vital link for our law enforcement 
officers, firefighters, and emergency medical personnel by monitoring their activities by radio, providing 
them information and insuring their safety; and 
 
Whereas, Public Safety Communications Specialists of the Central Dakota Communications Center 
have contributed substantially to the apprehension of criminals, suppression of fires, and treatment of 
patients; and 
 
Whereas, each Communications Specialist has exhibited compassion, understanding and 
professionalism during the performance of their duties in the past year; 
 
Whereas, the Central Dakota Communications Center Board of Directors has declared April 13th – 19th, 
2025 as National Public Safety Telecommunications to honor the men and women of the Central Dakota 
Communications Center who dedicate themselves to helping keep our communities and our citizens safe; 
 
Therefore, Be it Resolved that the Board of Commissioners for Burleigh County joins the Central 
Dakota Communications Center Board of Directors and declares April 13th – 19th, 2025 as National Public 
Safety Telecommunications Week in Burleigh County.  
 
 

Signed this ________ day of April, 2025. 
 
       
Chair 
Burleigh County Commission 
Burleigh County, ND 

 

043



 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 7 

044



 

 

 

PUBLIC 
HEARING 

045



Preliminary Resolution on Redesignating Elective Office of 
Burleigh County Auditor / Treasurer to Appointive Office 

 
Whereas the elective offices of Burleigh County Auditor and Burleigh County Treasurer have been 

combined into one elective office May 5, 2003; 
 
Whereas the County Auditor / Treasurer’s primary duties are chief financial officer, elections 

officer, secretary to the County Commission, keeping track of all property taxes, and to act 
as the accountant, financial manager, and investor for the county; 

 
Whereas pursuant to N.D.C.C. § 11-10-04, the qualification for an elected County Auditor or 

County Treasurer is the candidate must be a qualified elector in the county, which is at least 
eighteen years old and a resident of the county; 

 
Whereas the Board of County Commissioners believes that more qualifications are necessary for 

an individual to hold the position of Auditor / Treasurer; 
 
Whereas the Home Rule Charter for Burleigh County as passed on June 11, 2024, Article III sec. 

3 allows the Board of County Commissioners to follow state law converting the elected office 
of county auditor / treasurer into an appointed office and pursuant to N.D.C.C. § 11-10.2-
01(1)(c), the county may redesignate an elective county office as an appointive office; now, 
therefore, be it 

 
Resolved, that effective April 1, 2027 and in accordance with the details of the following plan, the 

office of Burleigh County Auditor / Treasurer be redesignated as an appointive office; 
 
Resolved, that a copy of this preliminary resolution and accompanying plan shall be filed in the 

Office of the County Auditor / Treasurer and shall be published once each week for two 
consecutive weeks , with public hearings scheduled thereafter. 

 
 
Dated this _____ day of ______________________, 2025. 
 
 
 
 
 

  
Brian Bitner, Chair 
Burleigh County Commission 

 
Attest:   
 Mark Splonskowski 
 Burleigh County Auditor / Treasurer 
 
 
 
  

046



Plan for Redesignating Elective Office of 
Burleigh County Auditor / Treasurer to Appointive Office 

 
1. Office of Burleigh County Auditor / Treasurer is redesignated as an appointive office effective 

April 1, 2027, when the current term for Auditor Treasurer expires. 
 
2. Director of Human Resources shall develop a job description to include all statutory job duties 

of county auditor and county treasurer along with job qualifications, including experience in 
finance or accounting, and appropriate pay grade for approval by the Burleigh County 
Commission no later than sixty (60) days after any final resolution adopting the plan. 

 
3. The recruitment and retention for the office of Burleigh County Auditor / Treasurer shall be 

governed by the Burleigh County Personnel Policy Manual and Handbook. 
 
  

047



 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 10 

048



049



050



051



052



 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 11 

053



Missouri Valley Complex Committee 

 

 

April 2, 2025 

To: Mr. Wayne Munson, Commissioner 
      Burleigh County 
      Missouri Valley Complex Liaison 
 
From: Kay LaCoe. Chair 
             Missouri Valley Complex Committee 
 
Subject: Request for Burleigh County Commission Action 
 
Commissioner Munson,  
 
On behalf of the Missouri Valley Complex Committee, I am writing to you to place on the 
April 7th Commission meeting agenda this memo with attachments  and recommendations 
for consideration by the Commission.  
 
The items requesting action  by the Commission as approved by the Committee are as 
follows: 
  

1-To receive an update and report from Swenson Hagen Engineering on the progress 
of Rezoning the Missouri Valley Complex. 
 
2  -To receive an update and report from Swenson Hagen Engineering on the 
progress and schedule of plat development of the Missouri Valley Complex 
including defining of activity and use within the Complex. (attachment 1 - Map) 
  
**The Missouri Valley Complex Committee additionally asks the Commission  
to approve the following  items relating to the plat development: 
 
     ** The Committee asks the Commission to approve  public development of 
all roads, water service, sewer, parking lots and utilities.  
 
        

054



Missouri Valley Complex Committee 

     **The Committee asks the Commission to Call for Proposals to conduct a  
Wetlands Delineation Survey of the Complex north of the Hay Creek Channel to 
include identification of wetland recommendations within proposed project 
areas, mitigation plans for identified impacted wetland and to provide up to a 5-
year oversite of any wetland mitigation. (attachment 2 RFP) (attachment 3 map) 
 
     **The Committee asks the Commission to fund the Mitigation Delineation 
from the Missouri Valley Complex Fund. 
 

           
The Missouri Valley Complex Committee has reviewed and approved to move forward 
to the County Commission, for approval, the following request from the Equestrian and 
Ag Complex Committee as follows: 

 
 **The Missouri Valley Complex Committee requests on behalf of the   
Equestrian and Ag Committee approval  to proceed with the project plan 
development of the  proposed Burleigh County Equestrian and Ag Center on 
the site identified on the preliminary plat as a  Burleigh County project.  

      
 Please reference the enclosed preliminary site plan renderings for the proposed   
project. Representatives of the Equestrian and Ag Committee will be attending to 
provide a detailed overview of the proposed project. (attachments 4,5) 

 
 

1. Consideration of Missouri Valley Complex Ag and Hay Leases 2025. 
  
The Missouri Valley Complex Committee reviewed the proposed 2025 Ag Land and 
Hay Leases and propose the following recommendations. 
 
      ** Ag Land Lease:  
  The Missouri Valley Complex Committee recommends that Burleigh 
County does not lease the ag land in 2025  due to the possible need for access 
to the site for project development and wetlands survey. 
 
        In lieu of a lease, the Missouri Valley Complex Committee recommends 
that the ag land area is overseeded to a grass cover crop that may provide for a 
contract for hay in the fall of 2025. 
 

055



Missouri Valley Complex Committee 

         
 
 ** Hay Land Lease: 
  The Missouri Valley Complex Committee supports the leasing of the hay land  
at the Complex. 

 
 
On behalf of the Missouri Valley Complex Committee, I and other committee members will 
be in attendance to assist in any way with presenting the request.  
 
Thank you for your support and presenting our recommendations for consideration and 
action to the full Burleigh County Commission at the upcoming April 7th meeting.  

 
 
           

  
 
 

 

056



RV PARKING

RV PARKING

PARKING LOT
COMMUNITY

 GARDEN

PARKING LOT

TRACK SEATING

EVENT/
FESTIVAL
GROUNDS

PA
R

K
IN

G
 L

O
T

RV
DUM

P

MOTOCROSS

EQUINE SITE

PARK

GATED
ACCESS

G
A

TE
D

A
C

C
ES

S CONCESSIONS

CONCESSIONS

CONCESSIONS

PROPOSED R-O-W

PROPOSED R-O-W

PROPOSE
D R

-O
-W

PROPOSED

POND

PARK
ING

 LO
T

BUCKSTOPJUNCTION

BISMARKPARKDISTRICT

PARKING

 LOT

TRACK

40 AC ±

12 AC ±

5 AC ±

10 AC ±

3 AC ±

15 AC ±MULTI-USE/
TRACK

STAGING
AREA

057



058



BURLEIGH COUNTY EQUESTRIAN & AG CENTER

059



BURLEIGH COUNTY EQUESTRIAN & AG CENTER

060



RV PARKING

RV PARKING

PARKING LOT
COMMUNITY

 GARDEN

PARKING LOT

TRACK SEATING

EVENT/
FESTIVAL
GROUNDS

PA
R

K
IN

G
 L

O
T

RV
DUM

P

MOTOCROSS

EQUINE SITE

PARK

GATED
ACCESS

G
A

TE
D

A
C

C
ES

S CONCESSIONS

CONCESSIONS

CONCESSIONS

PROPOSED R-O-W

PROPOSED R-O-W

PROPOSE
D R

-O
-W

PROPOSED

POND

PARK
ING

 LO
T

BUCKSTOPJUNCTION

BISMARKPARKDISTRICT

PARKING

 LOT

TRACK

40 AC ±

12 AC ±

5 AC ±

10 AC ±

3 AC ±

15 AC ±MULTI-USE/
TRACK

STAGING
AREA

061



&Co

HS
Surveying
Hydrology

Land Planning
Civil Engineering

Landscape & Site Design
Construction Management

3002 Airway Avenue
Bismarck, North Dakota 58504

sheng@swensonhagen.com
Phone (701) 223 - 2600

Fax (701) 223 - 2606

SWENSON, HAGEN & COMPANY P.C. PROJECT AREA MAP
MISSOURI VALLEY COMPLEX

BISMARCK, ND

APPLE CREEK ROAD

MAIN AVENUEE
 B

IS
M

A
R

C
K

 E
X

PR
E

SS
W

A
Y

PROJECT
LOCATION

Y
E

G
E

N
 R

O
A

D

M
ID

W
E

ST
 D

R
IV

E

52
N

D
 S

T
R

E
E

T

AIRWAY AVENUE

MORRISON AVENUE

ROSSER AVENUE

P:\Burleigh County, ND\Bismarck\Missouri Valley Complex 2nd Replat\Plat\Missouri Valley Complex 2nd Replat SWMP.dwg, 4/3/2025 8:07:28 AM, calew

062

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOT TO SCALE



 

Missouri Valley Complex 

Request for Proposal 

 

 

To Perform 

Environmental Consul�ng Services 

4/2/2025 

 

 

 

 

 

For Burleigh County 

& 

Missouri Valley Complex Commi'ee 

 

 

 

Proposals Must be delivered to: 

 Burleigh County Auditor 

221 North 5th Street 

BY 

12:00 PM Central Time 4/29/2025 

 

 

 

063



PURPOSE 

Burleigh County is solici�ng proposals from qualified consultants to assist the “County” with 

wetland delinea�on services, submi�al of a possible mi�ga�on plan/permit to the Corps of 

Engineers and possible post construc�on monitoring as required by an approved permit.  A$er 

the delinea�on and report are completed; the Consultant will meet with the County to discuss its 

findings and possible next steps.  If the County decides that wetland impacts are unavoidable, the 

Consultant my be asked to enter into a sub-contract for addi�onal services. 

 

LOCATION 

The project area is located south and east of the intersec�on of Main Avenue and Bismarck 

Expressway (See Project Area Map), on lands owned by Burleigh County.  The area is commonly 

known as the Missouri Valley Complex. 

 

CONSULTANT OBLIGATIONS 

Consultant must analyze and respond to all sec�ons of this RFP providing sufficient informa�on 

to allow the County to evaluate the Proposal.  Consultant, by submi6ng its Proposal, agrees that 

any costs incurred by the Consultant in responding to this RFP, are to be borne by the Consultant 

and may not be billed to County.  Consultant’s proposal must match the order in which the RFP 

was submi�ed or clearly state where the informa�on resides.  If County has any confusion or 

difficulty in retrieving the required informa�on from the Consultant’s proposal, it may result in 

disqualifica�on of such proposal. 

 

SUBCONTRACTING 

No por�on of the work shall be subcontracted without prior wri�en consent of the County.  In 

the event that Consultant desires to subcontract some part of the work specified in the contract, 

Consultant shall furnish the County the names, qualifica�ons and experience of the proposed 

subcontractor(s). The consultant shall, however, remain fully liable and responsible for the work 

to be done by subcontractor(s) and shall assure compliance with all the requirements of the 

contract. 

 

DISPOSITION OF PROPOSALS 

All material submi�ed in response to this RFP will become the property of the County and may 

be returned only at the op�on of the County and at the expense of the Consultant.  Successful 

and unsuccessful bidders will be no�fied in wri�ng or via email. The County shall not be 

obligated to detail any of the results of the evalua�on. 

064



CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENT OF PROPOSAL 

The contents of submi�ed Proposals will be considered obliga�ons of the successful Consultant.  

No informa�on should be submi�ed that is not intended to be incorporated into the Proposal 

and any contract that may result from such Proposal.  If there is any inconsistency between the 

terms herein and any of the other contract documents, the terms in the other contract 

documents shall prevail. 

 

PROJECT GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 

The County’s goal for this project is physically flagging and loca�ng via GPS, the wetland 

boundaries surveyed and consultant will be responsible for iden�fying and mapping all wetland 

areas within the project area in compliance with federal, state, and local regula�ons. The 

delinea�on process will establish precise wetland boundaries and provide the necessary 

documenta�on to support future land development and permi6ng requirements.  Consultant is 

responsible for the comple�on of a wetland delinea�on report in accordance with the 1987 

Wetland Delinea�on Manual, Regional Supplement to the Corps of Engineers Wetland 

Delinea�on Manual: Great Plains Region.  Addi�onally, the consultant will be required to submit 

a Formal Determina�on request through the appropriate regulatory agencies. 

 

SCHEDULE 

Work will be conducted as soon as the growing season starts in 2025. 

 

EVALUATION AND SELECTION PROCESS 

Firms interested in performing the work must submit one electronic proposal in PDF format. The 

electronic copy must be submi�ed prior to the date and �me listed on the cover of this RFP to be 

considered. Late proposals will not be considered.  

  

Proposals shall be submi'ed to:  

County Auditor 

City / County Building 

221 North 5th Street 

Bismarck, ND 58501 

 

o Each proposal shall contain a cover letter signed by an authorized officer who can sign 

contracts for the firm. The pages of the cover letter will not be counted as a part of the 

pages. Also include the individuals email address below each signature on the cover letter. 

 

065



o Qualifications of your firm and staff proposed to perform the work described in this 

request for proposal. This should include resumes of staff and any recommendation / 

commendation letters received from past projects. 

 

o Each proposal shall include a cost proposal for the requested work.  Any additional work 

requested will be executed with a sub-contract. 

 

o Past Performance – Past performance on similar contracts must be demonstrated in 

terms of deliverables that were completed, cost control and compliance measures 

that the firm uses, whether projects were completed on time and within cost. Past 

performance should be described with a list of comparable projects. Listed projects 

should include, a project description, owner, and contact information, cost of 

project, and types of deliverables. 

 

o Project Management and Team Organization – Applicant should describe staff who 

will be involved and to what level, the project lead and organization. Additional 

information should include quality assurance and cost control measures, and prior 

experience of the project team as a unit. 

 

o Related Experience shall include experience in submittals of mitigation plans and post-

construction monitoring of mitigation projects. 

 

o The proposal pages shall be numbered and must be limited to 6 pages in length.  

Proposals that exceed the page length requirement will not be considered.  

 

Each proposal will be evaluated by a selec�on commi�ee consis�ng of County staff members 

and/or representa�ves.  The County reserves the right to limit the interviews to a minimum of 

three firms whose proposals most clearly meet the RFP requirements.  Firms not selected to be 

interviewed will be no�fied in wri�ng.   

 

Selec�on will be based on the following weighted criteria: 

 

Weight 

 

__10%___   i.     Past performance         

__10%___   ii.    Ability of professional personnel 

__10%___   iii.   Willingness to meet �me and budget requirements 

__20%___   iv.   Cost Proposal 

__10%___   v.    Recent, current, and projected workloads of the persons and/or firms 

__10%___   vi.   Related experience on similar projects 

__30%___   viii. Project understanding, issues, and approach 

 

Weights for each criterion are assigned independently. Maximum total weight is 100 

points. 

066



RIGHT OF REJECTION 

 

The County reserves the right to reject any or all proposals. 

 

067



 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 12 

068



069



070



071



072



073



074



075



076



077



 

 

 

 

 

ITEM 
 

 

 

 

# 13 

078



079



080



081



082



083



084

Mitch Flanagan
Polygonal Line



085



Ord25-005 ZO        1 of 10     Art.8 Sec. 29 

 

 

ORDINANCE 25-005 ZO 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND RE-ENACT ARTICLE 8 OF THE 1972 AMENDED ZONING 
ORDINANCE OF BURLEIGH COUNTY, NORTH DAKOTA TO INCLUDE 

SECTION 29 SOLAR ENERGY SYSTEMS 
 

Section 1. Amendment   Article 8 of the Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended and   
  re-enacted as follows:    

 
                      SECTION 29 Solar Energy System Facilities   

A solar energy system may be permitted in an Agricultural District upon approval as a special 
use, provided the criteria and submittal requirements are met.  

Burleigh County finds that it is in the public interest to encourage the use and development of 
renewable energy systems (including solar energy systems) that have a positive impact on 
energy conservation with limited adverse impact on nearby properties.  Burleigh County 
supports the use of solar collection systems and the development of solar energy farms.  
Consistent with the Burleigh County Comprehensive Plan, it is the intent of the County with this 
Section to create standards for the reasonable capture and use, by households, businesses and 
property owners, of their solar energy resource and encourage the development and use of 
solar energy.  

1. DEFINITIONS   
 
The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this Article and Section, shall have the 
meaning provided herein, except where the context clearly indicates otherwise:   

1. Agrivoltaics- The dual use of land for combining agriculture with solar energy 
production, typically, with raised co-located solar arrays above agricultural activity. 

2. Building-Integrated Solar System- An active solar system that is an integral part of a 
principal or accessory building, rather than a separate mechanical device, replacing or 
substituting for an architectural or structural component of the building. Building 
integrated systems include, but are not limited to, photovoltaic or thermal solar systems 
that are contained within roofing materials, windows, skylights and awnings. 

086



Ord25-005 ZO        2 of 10     Art.8 Sec. 29 

3. Community Solar Energy System-   A solar-electric (photovoltaic) array that provides 
retail electric power (or a financial proxy for retail power) to multiple community 
members or businesses residing or located off-site from the location of the solar energy 
system. 

4. Ground Mounted Panels-   Freestanding solar panels mounted to the ground by use of 
stabilizers or similar apparatus. 

 
5. kWac – Kilowatt, Alternating Current 

 
6. Lot – The word “lot” when used alone shall mean, unless the context of the Article 

clearly indicates otherwise, a “zoning lot” as defined in Article 3 – Definitions. 
 

7. mWac – Megawatt, Alternating Current 
 

8. Off-Grid Solar Energy System – An active solar energy system that converts solar energy 
directly into electricity.  Unlike on-grid solar power systems, off-grid systems do not 
connect to the national utility grid. 
 

9. Photovoltaic System-   An active solar energy system that converts solar energy directly 
into electricity.  
 

10. Photo Panel System A system that incorporates discrete photovoltaic panels that 
convert solar radiation into electricity, including rack support systems. 
 

11. Roof or Building Mounted SES- Solar Energy System (panels) that are mounted to the 
roof or building using brackets, stands or other apparatus.  

 
12. Roof Pitch- The final exterior slope of a building roof calculated by the rise over the run, 

typically, but not exclusively, expressed in twelfths such as 3/12, 9/12, 12/12.    
 

13. Solar Access-   A view of the sun, from any point on the collector surface that is not 
obscured by any vegetation, building, or object located on parcels of land other than the 
parcel upon which the solar collector is located, between the hours of 9:00 AM and 3:00 
PM Standard time on any day of the year.  

 
14. Solar Collector- A device, structure or a part of a device or structure that the primary 

purpose is to transform solar radiant energy into thermal, mechanical, chemical or 
electrical energy.  

087



Ord25-005 ZO        3 of 10     Art.8 Sec. 29 

 
15. Solar Energy- Radiant energy received from the sun that can be collected in the form of 

heat or light by a solar collector.  
 

16. Solar Energy System (SES)- A system that converts solar radiation to usable energy, 
including photovoltaic panel systems and solar thermal systems.  An active solar energy 
system that collects or stores solar energy and transforms solar energy into another 
form of energy or transfers heat from a collector to another medium using mechanical, 
electrical, thermal or chemical means.  

 
17. Solar Farm- A commercial facility that converts sunlight into electricity, whether by 

photovoltaics (PV), concentrating solar thermal devices (CST), or other conversion 
technology, for the primary purpose of wholesale sales of generated electricity.  A solar 
farm is the primary land use for the parcel on which it is located.  

 
18. Solar Thermal System- A system that converts solar radiation to thermal energy for use 

in heating and cooling.   
 

  
2.  APPLICABILITY   
 
These regulations are for all solar energy systems and solar energy farms on properties and 
structures under the jurisdiction of the Burleigh County Zoning Ordinance except that Burleigh 
County requires the owner or operator of solar farms that would generate electricity greater 
than than 50 megawatts of power to have approval for such a system from the North Dakota 
Public Service Commission.  

   
Types of Solar Energy Systems.      
 

1. Rooftop solar energy systems: 
 
Accessory to the primary land use, designed to supply energy for the primary use:    

a. These systems are permitted accessory uses in all districts in which 
buildings are permitted. The owner or contractor shall receive a building 
and a mechanical permit before installing a rooftop solar energy system.   

b. Size Classification for the following rooftop Solar Photo Voltaic systems: 
i. Residential – 1 to 20 kWac – accessory use, connected to   
 existing load, rooftop or ground mount. 

088



Ord25-005 ZO        4 of 10     Art.8 Sec. 29 

ii. Small Commercial – 20 to 50 kWac – accessory use, connected  
 to existing load, rooftop or ground mount. 
iii. Large Commercial – 50 kWac to 100 MWac – accessory use,  
 connected to existing load, rooftop or ground mount. 
 

c.   Exemption:  
 i. A Rooftop mounted solar panel in Residential Districts for a 

 single family dwelling primary structure is exempt from this section 
     

2. Ground-mount solar energy systems:  
 
Accessory to the primary land use, designed to supply energy for the primary use.   

a. Ground-mount systems are permitted accessory uses in all districts in which 
buildings are permitted. 

b. Ground-mount systems require a Burleigh County building permit and are 
subject to the accessory use standards for the district in which it is located, 
including setback. The height of a ground-mounted shall not exceed 10 feet 
and shall not cover or encompass more than 10 percent of the total property 
area or lot size.   

c. Size Classification   for the following found mounted Solar Photo Voltaic 
Systems: 
i. Residential – 1 to 20 kWac – accessory use, connected to   
 existing load, rooftop or ground mount. 
ii. Small Commercial – 20 to 50 kWac – accessory use, connected  
 to existing load, rooftop or ground mount. 
iii. Large Commercial – 50 kWac to 100 MWac – accessory use,  
 connected to existing load, rooftop or ground mount. 

   

3. Community solar energy systems:  
 
Roof or ground-mount solar energy systems, may be either accessory or primary 
use, designed to supply energy for off-site uses on the distribution grid, but not for 
export to the wholesale market or connection to the electric transmission grid.  
These systems shall be subject to the following conditions:   

a. Rooftop community solar energy systems are permitted in AG districts in 
which buildings are permitted. 

b. Ground-mount community solar energy systems are an accessory use in all 
districts. 

089



Ord25-005 ZO        5 of 10     Art.8 Sec. 29 

 
c. All structures must meet the setback, height and coverage limitations for 

the district in which the system is located. 
d. Size Classification of Community Solar – 100 kWac to 1MWac – primary or 

special use, not connected to a load, typically ground mount. 
e. Ground-mount systems must meet all required standards for structures in 

the district in which the system is located. 
f. Site Plan Required:  The owner or operator shall submit to the County a 

detailed site plan for both existing and proposed conditions.  These plans 
shall show the location of all areas where solar arrays would be placed, the 
existing and proposed structures, property lines, access points, fencing, 
landscaping, surface water drainage patterns, floodplains, wetlands, the 
ordinary high-water mark for all water bodies, any other protected 
resources, topography, electric equipment and all other characteristics 
requested by the County. 

g. Power and communication lines.  Power and communication lines running 
between banks of solar panels and to electric substations or 
interconnections with buildings shall be buried underground. The Building 
Official or their designee may grant exemptions to this requirement in 
instances where shallow bedrock, water courses or other elements of the 
natural landscape interfere with the ability to bury lines.  
  

4. Solar farms:  
 
Ground-mount solar energy arrays that are the primary use on the lot or of a 
property, designed for providing energy to off-site uses or export to the wholesale 
market.  These types of systems are permitted and regulated by the North Dakota 
Public Service Commission and ND State Electrical Board.   

  
a. Solar farms are allowed under a special use permit in Agricultural (AG) 

zoning.  
b. Shall be on properties of at least 10 acres in size.   
c. Size Classification of Solar Farms Photo Voltaic Systems – 10 MWac to 

500 MWac – primary or special use, not connected to a load, ground 
mount. 

d. Stormwater management and erosion and sediment control, if required, 
shall meet the design restrictions of the County. 
 

090



Ord25-005 ZO        6 of 10     Art.8 Sec. 29 

e. Foundations.  If required, the manufacturer’s engineer or a ND registered 
design professional shall certify that the foundation and design of the 
solar panels meets the accepted professional standards, given local soil 
and climate conditions. 

f. Other standards and codes. All solar farms shall meet all applicable local, 
state and federal regulatory standards, including the State of North 
Dakota Building Code and the National Electric Code. 

g. Power and communication lines.  Power and communication lines running 
between banks of solar panels and to electric substations or 
interconnections with buildings shall be buried underground.  The Building 
Official or their designee may grant exemptions to this requirement in 
instances where shallow bedrock, water courses or other elements of the 
natural landscape interfere with the ability to bury lines as reviewed by the 
manufacturer’s engineer or a ND registered design professional. 

h. Site Plan Required.  The owner or operator of the solar farm must submit to 
the County a digital copy of site plan (pdf format, full size) at 1” = 20’ or 
larger scale, if integral to request for both existing and proposed conditions. 
These plans shall show the location of all areas where solar arrays would be 
placed, proposed location and distances from the existing and proposed 
structures, property lines, access points to the site, fencing, landscaping, 
surface water drainage patterns, floodplains, wetlands, the ordinary high-
water mark for all water bodies, any other protected resources, topography, 
electric equipment and all other characteristics requested by the county 
including: 
i. Date the site plan was prepared, 
ii. North point indication 
iii. Section, township and range numbers 
vi. Topographic contours with a minimum contour interval of ten 
 (10) feet, with indication of datum used, 
v. Location map inset showing the township(s) in which the project 
 is located and the boundary of the proposed project. 
iv. Location of all existing public roads, dimensions and location of 
 any utility easements and rights-of-way within five hundred (500) 
 feet of proposed solar farm. 

i. The County allows the installation of small operations, security, and 
equipment buildings on the site of solar farms as permitted accessory 
uses to the solar farm 

091



Ord25-005 ZO        7 of 10     Art.8 Sec. 29 

j. The owner or operator shall contain all unenclosed electrical conductors 
located above ground within structures that control access or they must 
be protected from entry by a six-foot tall fence.  

  
5. Accessory Solar Energy Systems:     

  
a. Solar Access: an applicant may obtain solar easements from the adjoining 

property owners to preserve direct access to sunlight, as authorized by 
Section 47-05-01.2 of the North Dakota Century Code. A permit granted 
by Burleigh County to install a solar energy system does not guarantee 
solar access.  

b. Accessory Use: Solar energy systems are permitted as an accessory use, 
subject to all requirements of Article 8 and the building code 
requirements of Article 22 Section 1.  
i. An accessory solar energy system must be located on the same lot 
 or parcel of land as the primary use it is intended to serve.  
ii. An accessory solar energy system is intended to produce energy 
 primarily for on-site consumption but excess electrical power may 
 be transferred to a power supply grid pursuant to utility company 
 interconnection agreements.  

  
6. Size Classification of Solar Photo Voltaic Systems: 

 a. Residential – 1 to 20 kWac – accessory use, connected to existing load, 
  rooftop or ground mount. 
 b. Small commercial – 2o to 50 kWac – accessory use, connected to existing 
  load, rooftop or ground mount. 
 c. Large Commercial – 50 kWac to 100 MWac – accessory use, connected to 
  existing load, rooftop or ground mount. 
 d. Community Solar – 100 kWac to 1MWac – primary or special use,not 
  connected to a load, typically ground mount. 
 e. Solar Farm – 10MWac to 500 MWac – primary or special use, not  
  connected to a load, ground mount. 
 

7. Decommissioning Plan:   
 
The County requires the owner or operator to submit a decommissioning plan for 
ground-mounted systems to ensure that the owner or operator properly removes 
the equipment and facilities upon the end of project life or after their useful life.  
The owner or operator shall decommission the solar panels in the event they are not 

092



Ord25-005 ZO        8 of 10     Art.8 Sec. 29 

in use for twelve (12) consecutive months.  The plan shall include provisions for the 
removal of all structures that are above ground and foundations, the restoration of 
soil and vegetation and a soundly-based plan ensuring financial resources will be 
available to fully decommission the site.  The disposal of structures and/or 
foundations shall meet all County requirements and the requirements of the County 
Solid Waste Ordinance.   The County also may require the owner or operator to post 
a bond, letter of credit or establish and escrow account to ensure property 
decommissioning.  
  

8. Prohibitions:  
 
The County prohibits community solar farms located within:   
  

a. All Floodplain Districts and Designated SFHA Areas.  
  

9. Additional standards:   

In addition to the requirements listed above, all solar energy systems shall meet the 
following standards.   

a. The owners or operators of electric solar energy systems that are connected 
in parallel with the service provider to the electric distribution or 
transmission system, either directly or through the existing service of the 
primary use on the site, shall obtain an interconnection agreement with the 
electric utility in whose service territory the system is located.  Off-grid 
systems are exempt from this requirement.     

b. Electric solar system components that are connected to a building electric 
system must have an Underwriters Laboratory (UL) listing.   

c. All solar energy systems shall meet the standards of the North Dakota State 
Electrical Board, North Dakota State Building Code, National Electric Safety 
Code and National Electric Code. 

d. Solar farms shall control al Noxious Weeds according to NDCC Chapter 4.1-
47.  

e. All electrical lines serving a freestanding accessory solar energy system shall 
be buried.  

f. Installation of all rooftop solar systems shall meet the standards of the North 
Dakota Building Code.   

g. All solar energy systems using a reflector to enhance solar production shall 
minimize glare from the reflector that affects adjacent or nearby properties.  
Steps to minimize glare nuisance may include selective placement of the 

093



Ord25-005 ZO        9 of 10     Art.8 Sec. 29 

system, screening on the north side of the solar array, reducing use of the 
reflector system or other remedies that limit glare.  

h. Roof-mounted solar systems shall not exceed the maximum allowed height 
in any zoning district.  

i. All exterior electrical and plumbing lines, batteries, and other appurtenant 
features serving a building-mounted accessory solar energy system shall be 
either screened or painted/coated to match the color of adjacent roofing or 
siding materials. This provision does not apply to a solar collector.  

j. The non-collecting side of a solar collector and other appurtenant features of 
any freestanding accessory solar energy system shall be screened from view 
of said public right-of-way with landscape buffer and/or fencing.  

k. Commercial rooftop systems shall be placed on the roof to limit visibility 
from the public right-of-way or to blend into the roof design, provided that 
minimizing visibility still allows the property owner to reasonably capture 
solar energy.   

l. Setbacks.  All equipment and structures shall meet the setback and coverage 
limitations for the zoning district in which the system is located. No free-
standing accessory solar energy system may extend into or over a legally 
recorded easement. 

m. Additional conditions or specific allowances to this ordinance may be 
considered in the review and approval of the Special Use Permit. 
 

10. Fees: 
 The special use permit fee will be based on .001 x total project cost.  An 
 application fee of $1,000.00 shall be payable at the time of application for a 
 special use permit, with the remained of the special use permit fee remitted by 
 the applicant prior to commencement of construction. Or: 
 a. $300.00 whichever is greater. 

   

Section 2.   Repeal.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance  
   are hereby repealed.   

Section 3. Severability.  If any section provision or part of this ordinance shall be   
   adjudged invalid or unconstitutional such adjudication shall not affect   
   the validity of the ordinance as a whole or any section, provision or   
   part thereof not adjudged invalid or unconstitutional.  

 Section 4.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall take effect after final passage, adoption  
   and publication as provided by law. 

094



Ord25-005 ZO        10 of 10     Art.8 Sec. 29 

  

Final passage and adoption:     

 

I, Mark Splonskowski, do hereby certify that I am the duly elected auditor of the County of 
Burleigh, State of North Dakota, and that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of an 
ordinance adopted by the Board of Burleigh County Commissioners at its regular meeting of 
________day of ______________________, 2025 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF: I have hereto set my hand and seal of Burleigh County this _______ day 
of ____________________, 2025 

 

__________________________________________       

Mark Splonskowski, Burleigh County Auditor/Treasurer 

 

095



096



                                                       RESOLUTION 25-01 

     RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  
                     COUNTY OF BURLEIGH, NORTH DAKOTA  
             MODIFICATION OF NON-ACCESS LINE 
 

WHEREAS, the owners of property described as_________    _________, adjoining and contiguous to a platted 
non-access control lines, have heretofore joined in petition requesting that parts of said non-access control lines be 
modified, verified by oath of at least one petitioner and accompanied by a plat of said non-access control lines to be 
modified  having set forth the facts and reason for said modification; and 
 
WHEREAS. said platted non-access control lines were shown on the plat of __________________________   
which was recorded on ______________________________ (document #_________________) and 
 
WHEREAS, The County Engineer has determined that the parts of the non-access control lines to be modified does 
not adversely affect traffic movements or public safety. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners for Burleigh County, North 
Dakota that the petition heretofore described to modify the non-access control line described as: 
 
                           Legal Description of Non-Access Line 
 
 
Is in all things allowed and granted 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the petition heretofore described to modify the ________________________ 
of the non-access control line described as: 
 
                Legal Description of Non-Access Line Modification 
 
Is in all things allowed and granted. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED the County Auditor is hereby authorized to file this resolution for record in the 
office of the County Recorder. Burleigh County, North Dakota. 
 
Adopted this _______day of _____________, 20__. 
 
 
 
                                       CERTIFICATE 
 
l, ________________________, do hereby certify that I am the duly elected, qualified, and acting County Auditor 
of the County of Burleigh, North Dakota, and that the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of a resolution 
adopted by the Board of County Commissioners at its regular meeting of _______________   _____    20___. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, have hereunto set my hand and the seal of the County of Burleigh, North 
Dakota, this ______day of ___________, 20__ 

 
 
                  ____________________________________________ 

      Mark Splonskowski     
 County Auditor. Burleigh County, North Dakota 

097



         AFFIDAVIT OF NON-ACCESS LINE MODIFICATION 

     AFD 25-001 

 

The Burleigh County Commission at a regular scheduled meeting on__________, 2025, duly 
modified the following non-access line as described below:  

 

           Witness my hand and seal this _______ day of _________________, 2025 

 

     __________________________________________________ 

        Mark Splonskowski, 
        Burleigh County Auditor 
 

    MODIFICATION OF NON-ACCESS LINE 

 

The Non-Access Line vacation is situated on ____________________________________________ 

 

, Burleigh County North Dakota being more particularly described as follows: 

           

 

    Legal description of non-access line: 

098


	April 7, 2025
	County Park Board
	October 21st, 2024 Park Board minutes
	County Commission
	December 16th, 2024 Minutes UPDATED - FINAL
	2025 - 03 - 22 - Public Hearing Meeting Minutes - Sterling
	2025 - 03 - 22 - Public Hearing Meeting Minutes - Wilton
	2025 - 03 - 29 - Public Hearing Meeting Minutes
	2025 - 04 - 02 - Special Meeting Minutes
	2025 - 03 - 17 - Meeting Minutes
	Abatement letter Apr 7, 2025
	Sheet1

	Consent Abatement letter Alan
	Consent DRISCOLL BETTERMENT CLUB
	Hall Consent 2nd access permit
	Hall consent accepting platted right of way
	Consent Mitch Ex.1 RRH Subdivision Final Plat
	Consent mitch Memo-RRH Final Subdivision
	Consent Mitch Ex.2 Love’s Wastewater System DEQ Letter of Approval
	Hall consent accepting platted RIght of way2
	#6
	Telecommunications week proclimation
	#7
	Public Hearing
	6 - Auditor-Treasurer Preliminary resolution
	#10
	Leben
	Leben Burleigh East
	#11
	MVCC  Memo to Commisioner Munson and Burleigh Co Commission 4-7-25
	Missouri Valley Complex concept
	Sheets and Views
	Dimension & Utility C3.0


	Missouri Valley COmplex replat
	MVCC Eq-Ag Center Image - 1
	Sht-1 [Render A]

	MVCC Eq-Ag Center Image - 2
	Sht-2 [Render B]

	MVCC Preliminary Plat Concept
	Sheets and Views
	Dimension & Utility C3.0


	MVCC Wetland Delineation Project Map
	Sheets and Views
	SWMP


	MVCC Wetland Delineation RFP
	#12
	Hall petition to vacate section line
	#13
	Mitch 1.1 MEMO_Sterling Township Service Agreement 2025
	Mitch 1.2 Ex.1 Sterling Township Service Agreement 2025
	Mitch 2.1 Memo Summit Point 2nd Subdivision
	Mitch 2.2 Ex.1 Summit Point 2nd Subdivision Final Plat
	Mitch 2.3 Ex.2 Site Location-Summit
	Mitch 3.1 Memo-Article 8 Solar Energy System Facilities
	Mitch 3.2 Ex. l  Article 8 Section 29 Solar Energy Systems.
	Mitch 4.1 Memo to County Board- Changing Non-Access Lines
	Mitch 4.2 Ex. 1 Sample Resolution 25-001
	Mitch 4.3 Ex. 2 Sample Affidavit



